
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded 
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Guy Close 
Scrutiny Unit 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 39 50878 
 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Angela Brogden 
Tel: 24 74553 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on 

Monday, 9th June, 2014 at 5.00 pm 
 

(No pre-meeting) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
B Anderson (Chair) - Adel and Wharfedale; 

J Bentley - Weetwood; 

A Blackburn - Farnley and Wortley; 

D Coupar - Cross Gates and Whinmoor; 

P Davey - City and Hunslet; 

R Grahame - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill; 

M Harland - Kippax and Methley; 

P Harrand - Alwoodley; 

G Hyde - Killingbeck and Seacroft; 

J Jarosz - Pudsey; 

M Robinson - Harewood; 

N Walshaw - Headingley; 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting). 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows: 

            
No exempt items have been identified. 

 

 



Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 10 MARCH 2014 
 
To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 10 March 2014. 
 

1 - 8 

7   
 

  INQUIRY INTO TACKLING DOMESTIC 
VIOLENCE AND ABUSE - DRAFT SCRUTINY 
REPORT 
 
To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development presenting the Board’s draft 
report following its recent inquiry into tackling 
domestic violence and abuse. 
 
(Report to follow) 
 

9 - 10 

8   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development presenting an overview of 
the Board’s work schedule during 2013/14. 
 

11 - 
46 



Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 
D 

   THIRD PARTY RECORDING 
 
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable 
those not present to see or hear the proceedings 
either as they take place (or later) and to enable 
the reporting of those proceedings.  A copy of the 
recording protocol is available from the contacts 
named on the front of this agenda. 
 
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of 
practice 
 

a) Any published recording should be 
accompanied by a statement of when 
and where the recording was made, the 
context of the discussion that took place, 
and a clear identification of the main 
speakers and their role or title. 
 

b) Those making recordings must not edit the 
recording in a way that could lead to 
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of 
the proceedings or comments made by 
attendees.  In particular there should be 
no internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and 
end at any point but the material 
between those points must be complete. 

 

 

 
 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 9

th
 June, 2014 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES) 
 

MONDAY, 10TH MARCH, 2014 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor B Anderson in the Chair 

 Councillors J Bentley, D Coupar, 
R Grahame, M Harland, P Harrand, 
G Hyde, J Jarosz, J Lewis, M Robinson 
and N Walshaw 

 
 

80 Chair's Opening Remarks  
 

The Chair made reference to the Council’s new protocol relating to third party 
recording of Committees, Boards and Panels, including both video and audio 
recording.  Copies of this protocol were made available at the meeting. 
 

81 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 

Members were advised that in relation to Agenda item 12 ‘Overview of the 
Crime and Disorder Joint Strategic Assessment’, Appendix 1 of the agenda 
report included information which warranted the exclusion of the press and 
public under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (7), ‘Information 
relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime’ (Minute No. 91 refers). 
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
the consideration of Appendix 1 in accordance with Access to Information 
Procedure Rule 10.4 (7), ‘Information relating to any action taken or to be 
taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime’. 
 

82 Late Items  
 

In accordance with his powers under Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chair agreed to accept the following 
supplementary information: 
 

• Report of the Director of Environment and Housing on the Leeds Hate 
Crime Strategy 2014-2019 (Minute no. 89 refers) 

 
The above document was not available at the time of agenda despatch, but 
was subsequently made available on the Council’s website. 
 

83 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 

There were no disclosable pecuniary interests declared to the meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 9

th
 June, 2014 

 

84 Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor A Blackburn and also 
Councillor P Davey, with Councillor J Lewis in attendance as substitute. 
 

85 Minutes - 10 February 2014  
 

Further to Minute no. 74 ‘Scrutiny review of the role, number and allocation of 
PCSOs in Leeds’ the Chair confirmed that the Scrutiny Board’s final report 
was subsequently published and formally considered by the Executive Board 
at its meeting on 4th March 2014.  A formal written response to the 
recommendations will be brought back to the Scrutiny Board in due course. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 10th February 2014 
be confirmed as a correct record. 
 

86 Work Schedule  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented the 
Board’s latest work schedule.   
  
The Chair confirmed that two additional working group sessions were being 
scheduled in March and April as part of the Board’s inquiry into tackling 
domestic violence in Leeds.   
 
The Chair also reported that Board Members had been invited to attend the 
Leeds BME Women’s Conference at the Hamara Healthy Living Centre on 
Wednesday 12th March 2014, which would also be addressing issues around 
domestic violence.   It was noted that Councillor Debra Coupar and Councillor 
Mary Harland would be attending this event on behalf of the Scrutiny Board. 
 
The Chair reminded the Board that its final meeting of the municipal year was 
scheduled for Monday 14th April 2014.  However, the Chair proposed that this 
meeting be deferred in view of the need to undertake two additional sessions 
linked to its inquiry into tackling domestic violence.  Board Members agreed to 
defer its final meeting until after the forthcoming Elections and proposed that it 
takes place on the day of the Council’s Annual General Meeting (Monday 9th 
June 2014).  The Principal Scrutiny Adviser was requested to explore this as 
an option and to send out confirmation of the meeting details as soon as 
possible.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(a) That the Board’s meeting on Monday 14th April 2014 be cancelled. 
(b) That the Principal Scrutiny Adviser explores the option of holding the 
Board’s final meeting on Monday 9th June 2014 and sends out confirmation 
details as soon as possible. 
 
 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 9

th
 June, 2014 

 

87 Improving communications aimed at tackling illegal money lending - 
response to the Scrutiny Board's recommendations  

 
The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented the 
response of the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) to the 
recommendations arising from the Scrutiny Board’s recent review which 
explored opportunities for improving communications aimed at tackling illegal 
money lending.     
 
Representatives from other relevant directorates and the Illegal Money 
Lending Team were also invited to discuss their role in taking forward the 
Board’s recommendations.  
 
The following were in attendance for this item: 
 

- Dave Roberts, Financial Inclusion Strategy Manager 
- Mike McAughtrie, LIASE Officer, Yorkshire and Humberside, Illegal 

Money Lending Team  
- Simon Swift, Area Manager, Environment and Housing 
- Michele Tynan, Chief Officer, Access & Care, Adult Social Care 
- Gail Webb, Head of Learning Improvement, Children’s Services 
- Hilary Farmery, Communications Manager, Corporate Communications 
- Tim Taylor, Health and Wellbeing Improvement Manager 
- Chief Superintendent Sam Millar, Chief Officer Community Safety 

 
The key areas of discussion were as follows: 
 

• Members acknowledged that a major publicity campaign aimed at 
tackling high cost lending and also illegal money lending was expected 
to be launched on 19th March 2014. 

• In relation to recommendation 3, it was suggested that the wording of 
this recommendation be amended to also acknowledge the need to 
work closely with the Director of Children’s Services in training relevant 
frontline staff within this directorate. 

• In relation to recommendation 4, Members reiterated the importance of 
targeting young people to help them understand the importance of 
keeping money safe and managing it right. It was noted that the 
education pack produced by the England Illegal Money Lending Team 
for schools had now been launched nationally.  

• In relation to recommendation 5, it was noted that this would be 
discussed by the Member Development Working Group at its next 
scheduled meeting. 

• Reference was made to ‘Operation Champion’ and the commitment of 
West Yorkshire Police in tackling illegal money lending.  Linked to this, 
it was noted that efforts are now being made to ensure that frontline 
operation staff, including PCSOs, receive weekly briefings on issues 
affecting their particular communities. 

• Members emphasised the importance of making alternative options to 
high cost lending and illegal lending easier to access and understand. 
Members were therefore pleased to note that the Money Information 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 9

th
 June, 2014 

 

Centre, a new web based resource, would be launched on 19th March 
2014 and is designed to meet this objective.  

• It was noted that the Money Information Centre would also help 
frontline staff signpost people to correct advice and agencies. Such 
staff would also receive briefing packs and additional training to equip 
them with the relevant knowledge and capacity to detect and support 
individuals in financial difficulties.  

• In acknowledging that a Leeds Education Hub is being set up, it was 
noted that this could provide a link to the Money Information Centre 
too. In addition, School Improvement Advisers would also receive 
training to help support their Head teachers and Chairs of Governors. 

•  Whilst acknowledging that the full extent of the problem relating to 
illegal money lending activity is difficult to measure, reference was 
made to the trends being observed with high cost lending, 
acknowledging that individuals engaging in illegal lending would have 
generally exhausted any legal lending options first.  

• It was highlighted that the Step Change debt charity had helped 36,000 
individuals in debt with pay day lenders in 2012.  In 2013, this figure 
had risen to 67,000 individuals. 

• Members emphasised the importance of identifying and supporting 
vulnerable individuals whom may have had benefits reduced or 
removed. 

• Particular emphasis was placed upon expanding the capacity of the 
Credit Union. It was noted that the Council has undertaken a lot of work 
with the Credit Union, including a pre-Christmas marketing campaign 
which proved to be very successful.  Members were pleased to learn 
that the Leeds Credit Union now has 27,000 members, which is its 
highest level.     

• In acknowledging the value of raising greater awareness of the Credit 
Union amongst young people within secondary schools, the Board 
agreed to make a formal recommendation in this regard. 

• Members noted the role and work being undertaken by Public Health 
around the wider determinants of health, including financial inclusion.  
Particular reference was made to its links with GPs and third sector 
organisations and also particular schemes such as ‘Opportunity 
Knocks’ and ‘Money Buddies’, which are being promoted as good 
practice models. 

• As well as providing support to individuals, particular importance was 
also placed around effective enforcement measures and the need to 
publicise successful prosecutions to help deter individuals from 
becoming loan sharks. 

 
RESOLVED –  
 
(a) That the Scrutiny Board notes the response to its recommendations. 
(b) That the wording of recommendation 3 be amended to acknowledge the 
need to work closely with the Director of Children’s Services in training 
relevant frontline staff within this directorate too. 
(c) That the following Scrutiny Board recommendation is also implemented 
and monitored accordingly: 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 9

th
 June, 2014 

 

 
Recommendation 6 
That the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) works closely 
with the Financial Inclusion Team and the Director of Children’s Services in 
promoting greater awareness in local secondary schools of the services 
provided by the Credit Union. 
 
(Councillor M Robinson arrived at 10.50 am during consideration of this item) 
 

88 Strategic Partnership Boards - Update  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented an 
update in relation to the actions taken as a consequence of the 
recommendations made by the Scrutiny Board last year following its review of 
the relevant Strategic Partnership Boards.  
 
Anne McMaster, Executive Officer, Citizens and Communities, was in 
attendance for this item. 
 
The key points raised during the Board’s discussion were as follows: 
 

• The terms of reference for the new Communities Board were attached 
to the report for Members’ information.  Members noted that this Board 
had only met for the first time on 28th January 2014.  At this meeting it 
was agreed that the main focus of the Board’s work would be to tackle 
poverty and deprivation and underpin the emerging Citizens@Leeds 
agenda. 

• Members noted that the Gypsy, Traveller and Roma Strategy Group no 
longer meet as a partnership.  Acknowledging that the issues 
previously addressed by this Group are now being picked up by the 
Environment and Housing directorate and the Migration Partnership, 
Members sought clarification of Elected Member representation on the 
Migration Partnership. 

 
RESOLVED –  
 
(a) That the contents of the report be noted. 
(b) That clarification of Elected Member representation on the Migration 
Partnership is provided to Board Members. 
 

89 Leeds Hate Crime Strategy 2014 - 2019  
 

The report of the Director of Environment and Housing presented details of 
the new Leeds Hate Crime Strategy 2014-2019 for the Board’s consideration.   
A copy of the full Strategy was also appended to the report. 
 
The following were in attendance for this item: 
 

- Harvinder Saimbhi, Head of Anti-Social Behaviour 
- Chief Superintendent Sam Millar, Chief Officer Community Safety 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 9

th
 June, 2014 

 

 
In consideration of this report, the following issues were discussed: 
 

• Current status of the Strategy – following consultation with 
stakeholders on the draft Strategy, Board Members acknowledged that 
the Strategy would now be formally launched on 24th April 2014. 

• Definition of Hate Crime – Members were pleased to note that the 
Strategy clearly sets out what is meant by Hate Crime and felt that 
greater awareness of this crime, particularly amongst young people, is 
needed. 

• Types of Hate Crime– Members discussed different types of hate crime 
and intelligence surrounding perpetrators. Members noted that 
Appendix D of the Strategy sets out a hate crime problem matrix, 
introducing a new language to track types of hate incidents. 

• Measures of success – Members held a discussion around measures 
of success linked to this Strategy.  Acknowledging that many hate 
incidents (non-crimes) will go unreported, it was noted that a key aim of 
the Strategy is to increase confidence in reporting, thereby increasing 
the number of reports recorded. 

• Desired outcomes – it was noted that another measure of success is 
linked to customer satisfaction with the investigation undertaken and 
also the outcome.  In responding to hate crime, emphasis was placed 
around adopting a victim-led approach.  Where the victim is willing, 
Hate Crime Coordinators will support them to access justice through 
the Criminal Justice System (CJS).  However, the Leeds Anti-Social 
Behaviour Team can also offer alternatives to CJS outcomes, with an 
emphasis on preventing incidents from reoccurring. 

• Commitment of the West Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner – 
it was highlighted that the PCC is also committed in driving forward this 
agenda, as set out in his Police and Crime Plan. 

 
RESOLVED – That the Scrutiny Board notes the content of the report and is 
fully supportive of the Leeds Hate Crime Strategy 2014-2019. 
 

90 2013/14 Quarter 3 Performance Report  
 

The report of the Director of Environment and Housing reflected the 
performance framework previously agreed by the Scrutiny Board.  This report 
set out the performance position at quarter 3 in relation to the relevant areas 
that fall within the Director of Environment and Housing responsibilities. 
 
Linked to this, the Board was reminded that as part of the performance 
framework, it would receive alternate quarterly reports covering the Safer and 
Stronger aspects of the Board’s remit.  It was agreed that this particular 
quarter would focus on the ‘Safer’ element of the Board’s portfolio.  This had 
been reflected at item 12 of the meeting agenda (Minute no. 91 refers). 
 
The following were in attendance for this item: 
 

- Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Housing 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 9

th
 June, 2014 

 

- Chief Superintendent Sam Millar, Chief Officer Community Safety 
 
In consideration of this report, the following issues were discussed: 
 

• Domestic burglary figures – Members welcomed the continuing 
reduction in domestic burglary figures citywide.  Linked to this, 
emphasis was placed upon continuing to scrutinise trends within 
localities to target resources accordingly. 

• Tetrapak recycling – Members discussed the potential for Tetrapack 
recycling and the need to evaluate the market value of this material 
again to determine whether it would be economically viable to do so. 

• Disposal of discarded needles – whilst acknowledging that the number 
of reports regarding discarded needles across the city has reduced, a 
Member of the Board referred to recent incidences within a particular 
hotspot area close to a school and therefore reiterated the importance 
of effective detection and reporting processes in this regard. 

• Reporting of anti-social behaviour – particular reference was made to 
reports of anti-social behaviour encountered by residents within 
properties managed by other Registered Social Landlords.  It was 
recognised that as good practice, such landlords should be 
encouraged to promote the services of the Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour 
Team amongst tenants. 

   
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
(Councillor M Harland left the meeting at 11.55 am during consideration of this 
item) 
 

91 Overview of the Crime and Disorder Joint Strategic Assessment  
 

Linked to the Board’s performance framework, the report of the Director of 
Environment and Housing focused around the ‘Safer’ element of the Board’s 
remit.   
 
The following were in attendance for this item: 
 

- Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Housing 
- Chief Superintendent Sam Millar, Chief Officer Community Safety 

 
Members noted the report which provided an overview of the annual Crime 
and Disorder Joint Strategic Assessment (JSA); a summary of the Safer 
Leeds strategic priorities for 2014/15 and an indication of key challenges.  A 
copy of the complete JSA was also provided as Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the submitted report, designated as 
exempt from publication under the provisions of Access to 
Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (7), which was considered in private during 
the meeting, it was 
 
 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 9

th
 June, 2014 

 

RESOLVED –  
 
(a) That the contents of the report and the Joint Strategic Assessment 
document be noted. 
(b) That Board Members receive a copy of the consultation paper cited in the 
JSA document in relation to out of court disposals (OOCDs). 
 

92 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 

To be confirmed. 
 
(The meeting concluded at 12.15 pm). 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) 

Date: 9th June 2014 

Subject: Inquiry into tackling domestic violence and abuse – draft scrutiny report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 
 
 
Summary of main issues  
 
1. This year, the Scrutiny Board had undertaken an in-depth inquiry into tackling 

domestic violence and abuse, with a particular focus on improving the early detection 
and referral of victims and perpetrators of domestic violence and abuse.  

 
2. In acknowledging the complexity and cross-cutting nature of this area of work, the 

Children and Families Scrutiny Board and the Health and Wellbeing and Adult Social 
Care Scrutiny Board were also invited to nominate a representative to assist in 
undertaking this inquiry.  Terms of reference for this inquiry were agreed by the Board 
in September 2013. 

 
3. This inquiry has now concluded and the Board is in a position to report on its findings 

and recommendations resulting from the evidence gathered. The Board’s draft report 
will follow and be made available in readiness for today’s meeting when Board 
Members will be asked to formally consider and agree its report.  

 
4. Scrutiny Board Procedure Rule 13.2 states that "where a Scrutiny Board is   

considering making specific recommendations it shall invite advice from the 
appropriate Director(s) prior to finalising its recommendations. The Director shall 
consult with the appropriate Executive Member before providing any such advice. The 
detail of that advice shall be reported to the Scrutiny Board and considered before the 
report is finalised”.   Any advice received will be reported at the Board’s meeting for 
consideration, before the Board finalises its report.  

 Report author:  Angela Brogden 

Tel:  24 74553 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 
5. Once the Board publishes its final report, the appropriate Director(s) will be asked to 

formally respond to the Scrutiny Board’s recommendations within three months. 
 
 

Recommendations 
 

6.     Members are asked to consider and agree the Board’s report following its inquiry into 
tackling domestic violence and abuse. 

 
 
Background documents1  
 
7. None used 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 10



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) 

Date: 9th June 2014 

Subject: Work Schedule 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The purpose of this report is to receive the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the 
current municipal year. 

 

2. As this is the last scheduled meeting in the current municipal year the work schedule 
attached as appendix 1 shows the issues the Board has considered in 2012/13.  

  
3. Also attached for Members’ information are the minutes of the Executive Board 

meetings held on 5th March 2014 and 2nd April 2014. 
 

Recommendations 
 

4.    Members are asked to: 
 

a) Note and comment on the issues the Board has considered in 2013/14.  
b) Note the attached minutes of the Executive Board meetings. 

 
 

Background papers1 
 

 

5. None used 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include 
published works.  

 Report author:  A Brogden 

Tel:  24 74553 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 5TH MARCH, 2014 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor K Wakefield in the Chair 

 Councillors J Blake, A Carter, M Dobson, 
S Golton, P Gruen, R Lewis, L Mulherin, 
A Ogilvie and L Yeadon 

 
 

190 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
RESOLVED – That, in accordance with Regulation 4 of The Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on 
the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so 
designated as follows:- 
 
(a) Appendix 1 to the report entitled, ‘Design and Cost Report for Holbeck 

Urban Village and Land Assembly Proposals’ referred to at Minute No. 
203 is designated as exempt in accordance with paragraph 10.4(3) of 
Schedule 12A(3) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds 
that it contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 
It is therefore considered that the public interest in maintaining the 
content of the appendix as exempt outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. Disclosing the amounts detailed within the 
appendix will jeopardise the Council’s ability to secure the best 
financial outcome and releasing information could have a detrimental 
impact upon the financial affairs of businesses that have tenancies at 
the Round Foundry Media Centre and Leodis Court. 
 

(b) Appendices A, C, D and E to the report entitled, ‘Design and Cost 
Report: Aire Valley Enterprise Zone - Progress and Next Steps’ 
referred to at Minute No. 205 are designated as exempt in accordance 
with paragraph 10.4(3) of Schedule 12A(3) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 on the grounds that the contents of the appendices relate to 
the financial or business affairs of the Council, and therefore it is 
considered in the public interest that these appendices are designated 
as exempt from publication. 

 
(c)  Appendix A to the report entitled, ‘Aire Valley Park and Ride Proposals’ 

referred to at Minute No. 206 is designated as exempt in accordance 
with paragraph 10.4(3) of Schedule 12A(3) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 on the grounds that the information contained within the 
appendix relates to the financial or business affairs of a particular 
person, and of the Council. This information is not publicly available 

Page 13



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

from the statutory registers of information kept in relation to certain 
companies and charities. It is therefore considered that since this 
information was obtained through one to one negotiations for the 
purchase of the land/property referred to, then it is not in the public 
interest to disclose this information at this point in time. Also, the 
release of such information would or would be likely to prejudice the 
Council’s commercial interests in relation to and undermine its attempts 
to acquire by agreement similar properties in the locality in that owners 
of other similar properties would be aware about the nature and level of 
consideration which may prove acceptable to the Council. It is 
considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure, 
much of this information will be available from the Land Registry 
following completion of the purchase and consequently the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing this information at this point in time.  

 
191 Late Items  

With the agreement of the Chair, an updated version of Appendix 1 to agenda 
item 23 entitled, ‘Leeds Core Strategy: Further Pre-Hearing Changes to Policy 
H7: Accommodation for Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople’ had 
been circulated to Board Members for their consideration. (Minute No. 211 
refers). 
 

192 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
There were no Disclosable Pecuniary Interests declared at the meeting, 
however in relation to the agenda item entitled, ‘Part A: Outcome of Statutory 
Notice on Proposals for the Expansion of Calverley Church of England 
Primary School; Part B: Outcome on a Proposal for the Expansion of 
Broadgate Primary School; and Part C: Outcome of Statutory Notice on 
Proposals for the Expansion of Broomfield South SILC and West Oaks SEN 
Specialist School and College’, Councillor A Carter drew the Board’s attention 
to his position on the Board of Governors at Calverley Church of England 
Primary School.  
 
In referencing the fact that he had previously voted on related matters in his 
position as a school governor, Councillor Carter emphasised that he would 
not participate on any vote taken at the Executive Board in respect of 
Calverley Church of England Primary School. (Minute No. 216 refers).  
 

193 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 14th February 
2014 be approved as a correct record.  
 
ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
 

194 Better Lives Lived - Leeds Local Account of Adult Social Care 2013/14  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report introducing the 
2013/14 Local Account of Adult Social Care Services in Leeds. The report 
provided a summary of the main areas of achievement of Adult Social Care 
and indicated those areas of service identified as requiring further 

Page 14



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

development to sustain or improve performance. Additionally, the report set 
out the new responsibilities placed upon councils and explained the Local 
Account’s contribution towards enhancing local accountability to the public 
and also as a tool to support sector led service improvement. 
 
Members welcomed the content of the Local Account document for the period 
2013/2014. 
 
RESOLVED –  That the contents of the submitted report, together with the 
appended Local Account for Leeds, entitled “Better Lives Lived”, be noted. 
 

195 Developing and Empowering Resources in Communities, Adult Social 
Care  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report highlighting the 
involvement of Adult Social Care in a ground breaking national initiative called 
Developing and Empowering Resources in Communities (DERIC), which was 
a community interest company established in May 2012 to find new ways of 
funding and providing social care in the current context of decreasing 
resources and increasing demand. 
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry regarding the potential around the support 
which could be provided to Neighbourhood Network Schemes in Leeds by 
DERIC, the Board noted that DERIC was a national initiative and that the 
allocation of funding was provided on a national basis. However, it was also 
noted that some of the savings generated by the scheme would be used to 
fund the next tranche of national investment.  
 
In conclusion, the strength of Neighbourhood Networks and the vital role they 
played throughout Leeds was highlighted. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the involvement of Leeds City Council in Developing and 

Empowering Resources in Communities or DERIC be endorsed. 
 
(b) That the continuing involvement of Adult Social Care in the governance 

structure of the national DERIC Board be approved, which will be 
subject to on-going monitoring by the Deputy Director of Adult Social 
Care, and subject to a six monthly review with the Executive Lead 
Member. 

 
(c) That the holding of a contingency fund created from within the current 

funding base of Adult Social Care be approved in order to enable 
Leeds City Council to guarantee the loan from DERIC to organisations 
in Leeds, and that it be noted that funding will be ‘drawn down’ rather 
than provided as a lump sum. Leeds City Council will, therefore, only 
need to ensure it holds sufficient funds to cover the amount that has 
been received. 

 
(d) That the future expansion of the use of this fund in Leeds be approved, 

subject to additional funding being made available from DERIC. 

Page 15



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

 
(e) That approval be given for the Council to provide a guarantee to 

DERIC in respect of loans provided to organisations in Leeds and that 
the authority required to conclude the necessary agreements be 
delegated to the Director of Adult Social Services. 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
 

196 Better Care Fund: Implications for Leeds City Council  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report providing information 
on the local development of plans for the Better Care Fund (BCF), the 
conditions of which were released by national government on 20 December 
2013. In addition, the submitted report explored the current and future 
implications for Leeds City Council in relation to the BCF, and highlighted the 
role which the BCF could play in bringing together partners to address the 
financial challenge facing the entire health and social care system in Leeds. 
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry regarding the governance and scrutiny 
arrangements around the BCF initiative, the Board noted the tight timescales 
which had been involved in getting the Leeds BCF to the current position, that 
the matter had been considered by Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing and 
Adult Social Care) and Members were provided with details around the further 
action which would be taken to keep Members briefed on related matters.  
 
In conclusion, it was noted that a further report would be submitted to a future 
meeting of the Executive Board regarding the governance arrangements 
around the initiative and it was suggested that an event for Members be 
scheduled in the Autumn in respect of the wider implications for the city which 
would arise from the BCF initiative. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That it be noted that national Government launched the detailed 

guidance for the Better Care Fund on 20 December 2013, with a 
requirement for local authorities to develop a joint plan with the relevant 
CCGs; and requiring its sign off by the local Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

 
(b) That it be noted that there are a number of potentially significant 

implications for Leeds City Council governance, budgeting and 
accounting arrangements arising from the requirements to establish a 
Better Care Fund, but given the tight national timescales at play, details 
of these are still to be worked through. It also be noted that the Deputy 
Director of Adult Social Care will continue to lead on the BCF on behalf 
of Leeds Council and will bring a further report to Executive Board in 
October 2014, which will advise the Board on the detail of outstanding 
governance, budgeting and accounting issues. 

 
(c) That it be noted that the first draft of the Leeds BCF was signed off by 

the Health and Wellbeing Board on 12 February 2014 as required by 

Page 16



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

national Government, and that a final version will be signed off and 
submitted by 4 April 2014. 

 
(d) That it be noted that this first draft was signed off by the Director of 

Adult Social Services, in consultation with the relevant Executive Lead 
Councillors, on behalf of Leeds City Council and that the final version 
of the BCF plan will also be signed off by the Director of Adult Social 
Services, in consultation with the relevant Executive Lead Councillors, 
on behalf of the Council. 

 
(e) That notwithstanding the resolutions above, the following progress on 

the BCF to date be noted:-  

• Leeds has established 2014/15 as a shadow year of the Better Care 
Fund through putting in place “pump-priming” arrangements ahead of 
the first official BCF year in 2015/16. 

• The schemes for the BCF proposed, as per the draft submission as 
detailed within Appendix A to the submitted report. 

• Whilst national Government has included the Disabilities Facilities 
Grant within the Better Care Fund proposals, in Leeds, this will not 
affect the overall budget for housing as it will be passported directly 
back to Director of Environment and Housing (the local Housing 
authority) to determine expenditure. 

 
(f) That a further report be submitted to a future meeting of the Executive 

Board regarding the governance arrangements around the initiative 
and that further consideration be given to the potential scheduling of an 
event for Members in the Autumn in respect of the wider implications 
for the city which would arise from the BCF initiative. 

 
LEADER OF COUNCIL'S PORTFOLIO 
 

197 Financial Health Monitoring 2013/14 - Month 10  
The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report on the Council’s projected 
financial position for 2013/14 after ten months of the financial year. 
 
RESOLVED – That the projected financial position of the authority after ten 
months of the financial year be noted. 
 

198 Social Inclusion Fund Consultation  
Further to Minute No. 69, 4th September 2013, the Assistant Chief Executive 
(Citizens and Communities) submitted a report which sought approval to 
establish criteria for project funding by the Social Inclusion Fund and which 
identified examples of specific activities that may be funded by the Social 
Inclusion Fund. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the funding criteria be approved and that the example projects, 

which were agreed with partners during a consultation workshop on 24 
January 2014 and which are appended to the submitted report, be 
noted. 

Page 17



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

 
(b) That the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens and Communities) be 

authorised to approve funding, within Financial Procedure Rules, of 
projects which meet the criteria for funding, as set out within the 
submitted report. 

 
199 Further review of the Local Welfare Support Scheme  

Further to Minute No. 97, 9th October 2013, the Assistant Chief Executive 
(Citizens and Communities) submitted a report providing updated details on 
the Local Welfare Support Scheme and which also set out how the scheme 
could continue to support the Citizens@Leeds approach to tackling poverty 
and deprivation. 
 
Members noted and raised concerns regarding the confirmation which had 
been received that there would be no Government funding for such schemes 
from 2015/2016 onwards. In emphasising the vital support which the Leeds 
scheme had provided since its establishment, it was requested that a letter be 
sent on behalf of the Board to Government highlighting the concerns which 
had been raised during the meeting regarding the withdrawal of Government 
funding towards the Local Welfare Support Scheme from 2015/2016 onwards. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given to the current scheme continuing for 

2014/2015. 
 
(b) That scheme funding be allocated, as set out within paragraph 3.3 of 

the submitted report. 
 
(c) That options be developed for emergency support schemes for 

2015/2016, in light of the Government decision to discontinue direct 
scheme funding. 
 

(d) That a letter be sent on behalf of the Board to Government highlighting 
the concerns which had been raised during the meeting regarding the 
withdrawal of Government funding towards the Local Welfare Support 
Scheme from 2015/2016 onwards. 

 
200 Best Council Plan Update 2014/2015  

The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report which provided information on 
the work undertaken to review the 6 Best Council Plan 2013-17 objectives 
and priorities to ensure that they reflected the progress made over the last 
year, the significant changes to the context in which the Council was working 
and to fully align the Authority’s strategy with the 2014/15 budget. As such, 
the submitted report presented a revised ‘Best Council Plan - Plan on a Page’ 
for approval. Furthermore, the report also set out the next steps in developing 
the supporting detail. 
 
The Chief Executive emphasised the importance of the ‘Plan on a Page’ 
document together with the clear objectives contained within it, and 

Page 18



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

highlighted the priority which would be given to the continued development of 
effective cross-directorate working throughout the Council.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the updated ‘Best Council Plan - Plan on a Page’ which sets out 

the Authority’s 6 strategic objectives and priorities for the next 3-4 
years be approved. 

 
(b) That the next steps, as outlined within the submitted report, to further 

develop the rest of the Best Council Plan in time for the start of the 
2014/15 financial year be noted. 

 
(c) That it be noted that the Chief Strategy and Improvement Officer will be 

responsible for the implementation of such next steps. 
 
(The matters referred to within this minute were designated as being not 
eligible for Call In, as Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rule 5.1.2 
states that the power to Call In decisions does not extend to those decisions 
made in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 
As the Best Council Plan forms part of the Budgetary and Policy Framework, 
it is therefore designated as exempt from call in) 
 

201 Extension of Discretionary Business Rates Relief Scheme  
Further to Minute No. 235, 24th April 2013, the Deputy Chief Executive and 
the Director of City Development submitted a joint report which sought 
approval to extend the guidelines for the award of discretionary rate relief to 
“for profit” organisations who meet the stated criteria, as now permitted under 
Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 
Members welcomed the proposals detailed within the submitted report and 
the assistance that the extension to the scheme would provide to businesses 
across the city. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the proposals to extend the guidelines for the award of 

discretionary relief for Business Rates from 1st April 2014 be approved. 
 
(b) That it be noted that the Deputy Chief Executive will be responsible for 

amending the guidelines for awarding discretionary relief. 
 
(c) That it be noted that the Chief Economic Development Officer will be 

responsible for implementing the scheme from 1 April 2014, as outlined 
within Section 3.5 of the submitted report. 

 
DEVELOPMENT AND THE ECONOMY 
 

202 A647 / B6154 Thornbury Barracks Junction Pinch Point Scheme  
The Director of City Development submitted a report which sought approval to 
implement the A647/B6154 Thornbury Barracks Junction Pinch Point 
Scheme, at a total estimated cost of £3,433,000. 

Page 19



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

 
The Board welcomed the proposals to improve the Thornbury Barracks 
junction and the grant funding which had been successfully secured from the 
Department for Transport’s Local Pinch Point fund.   
 
A Member received reassurance to the comments raised in respect of the 
consultation exercises which had taken place regarding this and other 
schemes in the area.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the proposed works, as outlined within sections 3.1 and 3.2 of the 

submitted report and as indicated on drawing no. ‘‘EP-716952-MIS-05’ 
as appended, at an estimated cost of £3,433,000 be noted and 
approved. 

 
(b) That authority be given to incur expenditure of £3,433,000 (being 

£2,983,000 works costs, £400,000 internal staff fee costs and £50,000 
other costs, including external staff fee costs), to be funded from a 
Department for Transport ‘Pinch Point’ grant of £2,403,000, Section 
106 receipts of £142,000 and the LTP Transport Policy Capital 
Programme of £888,000. 

 
(c) That approval be given for the release of £142,000 (and any accrued 

interest) of section 106 monies collected through the Public Transport 
Improvements and Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning 
Document.  

 
(d) That it be noted that the Head of Engineering Services will be 

responsible for implementation, according to the timescales as set out 
in paragraph 3.13 of the submitted report. 

 
203 Design and Cost Report for Holbeck Urban Village Land Assembly 

Proposals  
Further to Minute No. 180, 14th February 2014, the Director of City 
Development submitted a report which sought the Board’s agreement to the 
Council potentially acquiring assets in Holbeck Urban Village in order to 
support regeneration objectives in the area and to help stimulate economic 
growth.  
 
Members welcomed the proposals detailed within the submitted report and 
the regeneration opportunities which they could promote.  
 
In noting the difficulties which had been experienced by the Council in gaining 
access to Holbeck Viaduct, it was requested that on behalf of the Board, the 
Chief Executive write to the Chief Executive of Network Rail in order to try and 
resolve this matter. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the submitted report, designated as 
exempt from publication under the provisions of Access to Information 

Page 20



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

Procedure Rule 10.4 (3), which was considered in private at the conclusion of 
the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That agreement be given for the Council to acquire the freehold 

interest in Leodis Court from the Homes and Communities Agency, in 
accordance with the terms set out within paragraph 5.0 of the exempt 
Appendix 1 to the submitted report. 

 
(b) That agreement be given for the Council to take assignment of the 

lease at the Round Foundry Media Centre, in accordance with the 
terms as set out within paragraph 5.0 of the exempt Appendix 1 to the 
submitted report. 

 
(c) That the Director of City Development be authorised, in conjunction 

with legal services and in consultation with the Executive Member for 
Development and the Economy and the Deputy Chief Executive, to 
take steps to finalise and enter in to the agreements with the Homes 
and Communities Agency (HCA), in order to acquire the freehold 
interest in Leodis Court and the lease at Round Foundry Media Centre, 
in accordance with the terms as set out within paragraph 5.0 of the 
exempt Appendix 1 to the submitted report. 

 
(d) That the injection of the sum identified within exempt Appendix 1 into 

the capital programme for the purchase of Leodis Court be approved 
and that authority be given to spend the monies for the purchase of 
Leodis Court. 

 
(e) That it be noted that the Chief Asset Management and Regeneration 

Officer will be responsible for the implementation of resolutions (a), (b) 
and (c) above, and that the timescales for implementation, as set out 
within exempt Appendix 1 to the submitted report also be noted. 
 

(f) That should access to the Holbeck Viaduct not be achieved, then the 
Chief Executive write to the Chief Executive of Network Rail regarding 
the difficulties which had been experienced by the Council in gaining 
access to the Viaduct, in order to try and resolve this matter. 

 
(The matters referred to within this minute were designated as being exempt 
from Call In. A decision may be declared as being exempt from Call In if it is 
considered that any delay would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public 
interest. In this case, it is deemed that this report is exempt from call in as any 
delay in completing the acquisition will have an adverse impact upon the 
critical path of approvals of the Council and the HCA to complete the 
transaction and the commercial outcome that the Council achieves). 
 

204 Leeds City Council Input to Leeds City Region Strategic Economic Plan  
Further to Minute No. 165, 22nd January 2014, the Director of City 
Development submitted a report which set out the recommended main 

Page 21



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

proposals from Leeds City Council to be incorporated into the Leeds City 
Region (LCR) Strategic Economic Plan. 
 
Members noted that the Leeds City Council submission towards the LCR 
Strategic Economic Plan would be considered by the Local Enterprise 
Partnership for inclusion within the overarching LCR Strategic Economic Plan 
document. In addition, the Board discussed the time period which the 
Strategic Economic Plan would cover. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the main emerging priorities from Leeds, which will form the basis 

for Leeds City Council’s submission to the Leeds City Region Strategic 
Economic Plan, be endorsed. 

 
(b) That the approach of using the Core Cities “asks” of Government, as 

the basis for our proposals to Government, through the Strategic 
Economic Plan and the City Growth Deal, for greater devolution to 
support economic growth be endorsed. 

 
(c) That the Chief Economic Development Officer be requested to co-

ordinate further work to develop the proposals from Leeds for input into 
the Strategic Economic Plan, and also to work closely with the Leeds 
City Region team on the production of the Strategic Economic Plan. 

 
(The matters referred to within this minute were designated as being exempt 
from Call In. A decision may be declared as being exempt from Call In if it is 
considered that any delay would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public 
interest. In this case, the exemption from Call In is due to the tight timescales 
for finalising the Strategic Economic Plan, specifically, the Local Enterprise 
Partnership Board meeting to consider the draft plan is scheduled for 17th 

March 2014) 
 

205 Design & Cost Report: Aire Valley Enterprise Zone - Progress and Next 
Steps  
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing an update on 
the development within the Aire Valley Enterprise Zone and which also sought 
approval for a series of investment packages, which will trigger, if delivered 
alongside the development of a new Park and Ride facility within the Aire 
Valley, major development on up to 3 employment sites within the zone. 
 
Members supported the proposals detailed within the submitted report. 
 
Following consideration of Appendices A, C, D and E to the submitted report, 
all designated as exempt from publication under the provisions of Access to 
Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3), which were considered in private at the 
conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

RESOLVED –  
(a) That the strategy currently being adopted for the Enterprise Zone of 

securing investment in infrastructure to open up sites and supporting 
development of commercial floor space, be approved. 

 
(b) That the principle for the acceptance of the grant from the 

Government’s “Building Foundations for Growth” (BFG) fund be 
approved, and that approval of the terms be delegated to the Director 
of City Development and the Deputy Chief Executive. 

 
(c) That it be noted that the BFG grant of £8,570,000 has been injected 

into the capital programme. 
 
(d) That the principle of entering into individual funding and investment 

packages, with the individual developers of Logic Leeds, Connex 45 
and Temple Green be approved, and that the detailed 
recommendations relating to this matter, as set out within the exempt 
Appendix A to the submitted report, also be approved. 

 
(e) That the principle of prudentially borrowing the money required to fund 

the investment packages for Logic Leeds and Connex 45, as set out 
within exempt Appendix A to the submitted report, be approved. 

 
(f) That the principle of seeking funding from the Revolving Investment 

Fund for a contribution towards the cost of the investment package for 
Connex 45, be approved. 

 
(g) That the injection of funds into the capital programme in respect to the 

individual investment packages for Logic Leeds and Connex 45, as set 
out within exempt Appendix A to the submitted report, be approved. 

 
(h) That the Director of City Development be authorised, in consultation 

with the Leader, the Executive Member for Development and the 
Economy, the Deputy Chief Executive and the City Solicitor, to use his 
delegated powers to spend the BFG grant sums, as identified within 
exempt Appendix A to the submitted report and that authority to spend 
also be granted in respect of the individual investment packages as set 
out within exempt Appendix A. 

 
(i) That the Director of City Development be authorised, in consultation 

with the Leader, the Executive Member for Development and the 
Economy, the Deputy Chief Executive and the City Solicitor to use his 
delegated authority to enter into any and all necessary documentation, 
contracts and agreements required to facilitate the delivery of the 
individual development packages. 

 
(j) That the resolutions detailed above be declared exempt from the Call 

In process. 
 

Page 23



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

(The matters referred to within this minute were designated as being exempt 
from Call In. A decision may be declared as being exempt from Call In if it is 
considered that any delay would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public 
interest. In this case, a delay in completing all the necessary legal 
documentation as soon as practically possible may have an adverse impact 
upon the securing of the BFG grant and achieving the programme of works to 
enable delivery within the specified timeframe) 
 

206 Aire Valley Park and Ride Proposals  
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing an update on 
the progress made towards delivering a Park and Ride site in the Aire Valley 
within the Enterprise Zone and which also sought approval to move forward 
with the project. 
 
The Board welcomed the proposals detailed within the submitted report. 
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry regarding the potential for the early 
delivery of park and ride provision based at Bodington Fields, officers 
undertook to look into this matter further and respond accordingly to the 
Member in question. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix A to the submitted report, designated as 
exempt from publication under the provisions of Access to Information 
Procedure Rule 10.4 (3), which was considered in private at the conclusion of 
the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the principal of a 1000 space strategic Park and Ride site in the 

Enterprise Zone be endorsed. 
 
(b) That the principle of progressing the scheme in partnership with Metro 

via the West Yorkshire Plus Transport Fund (WY+TF) be approved. 
 
(c) That the provisionally agreed heads of terms agreement with Aire 

Valley Land Ltd to purchase a 10 acre remediated site for a 1,000 
space park & ride facility be approved, subject to funding approval from 
the WY+TF and planning permission being granted. Also, that any 
further consideration of terms for the acquisition be delegated to the 
Director of City Development to consider and approve as appropriate, 
under the appropriate scheme of delegation, with the concurrence of 
the Executive Member for Development and the Economy and also the 
Deputy Chief Executive. 

 
(d) That the submission of a joint planning application for the 1,000 space 

park & ride facility in association with Aire Valley Land Ltd. be 
approved, subject to the WY+TF approval processes. 

 
(e) That it be noted that Metro will tender for a bus operator to run an 

exclusive service between the site and the city centre, subject to the 
WY+TF approval processes. 

Page 24



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

 
(f) That the following also be noted:- 

i.  The stages required to implement the decision, as outlined in 
section 3.8 of the submitted report.  

ii.  The proposed timescales for implementation, as outlined in 
section 3.8 of thwe submitted report. 

iii.  That the Chief Officer Highways and Transportation will be 
responsible for the implementation of such matters. 

 
(The matters referred to within this minute were designated as being exempt 
from Call In. A decision may be declared as being exempt from Call In if it is 
considered that any delay would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public 
interest. In this case, a delay in completing all the necessary legal 
documentation as soon as practically possible may have an adverse impact 
on the securing of the BFG grant and achieving the programme of works to 
enable delivery within the specified timeframe) 
 

207 Local Flood Risk Management Strategy  
The Director of City Development submitted a report presenting the Leeds 
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy and which sought approval to 
recommend to Council that the Leeds Local Flood Risk Management Strategy 
be formally adopted. 
 
Members welcomed the comprehensive report and paid tribute to the work 
which continued to be undertaken by the Flood Risk Management team. 
 
Consideration was given to the issue of building upon flood plains, with 
emphasis being placed upon the need to ensure that such development was 
prohibited wherever possible. It was noted that a report on such matters was 
scheduled to be submitted to a future meeting of the Board. 
 
Emphasis was placed upon the need for the Environment Agency to maintain 
strong local links with the city, despite the closure of its Leeds based office. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That full Council be recommended to formally adopt the Leeds Local 

Flood Risk Management Strategy.  
 
(b) That it be noted that the Head of Engineering Services will be 

responsible for implementing the strategy once formally adopted. 
 
(The matters referred to within this minute were designated as being not 
eligible for Call In, as Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rule 5.1.2 
states that the power to Call In decisions does not extend to those decisions 
made in accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 
As the Local Flood Risk Management Strategy forms part of the Budgetary 
and Policy Framework, it is therefore designated as exempt from call in) 
 
 
 

Page 25



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

NEIGHBOURHOODS, PLANNING AND SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

208 Response to Deputation - "New Farnley Vision Group" concerning the 
consultation process for the Site Allocations Development Plan 
Document  
The Director of City Development submitted a report setting out the Council’s 
response to the deputation presented to the meeting of full Council on 15th 
January 2014 by the New Farnley Vision Group. 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the submitted report be noted. 
 

209 Police Community Safety Officers (PCSOs) - Response to Safer and 
Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board Review  
The Director of Environment and Housing submitted a report which outlined 
the Environment and Housing directorate’s response to the recommendations 
made by the Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) following the 
Scrutiny Board’s review into the role and allocation of Police Community 
Support Officers (PCSOs) in Leeds .  
 
The report of the Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) entitled, 
‘Review of the Role, Number and Allocation of Police Community Support 
Officers in Leeds’ was appended to the submitted report for Board Members’ 
consideration. 
 
As Chair of the Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities), Councillor 
Anderson provided the Board with a brief introduction to the findings and 
recommendations arising from the Scrutiny Board’s review. 
 
Having discussed a number of issues associated with the Scrutiny Board 
review, Members highlighted the vital role played by PCSOs within the 
community, specifically emphasising the reassuring presence that the officers 
provided. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Director of Environment and Housing be requested to bring 

back a workable solution on the deployment of PCSOs, following 

consultation with the Police, with the matter being reported back to a 

future meeting of the Executive Board. 

(b) That recommendations 2 and 3 of the Scrutiny Board (Safer and 

Stronger Communities) as detailed within the review report, be 

supported. 

210 Leeds Core Strategy: Inspector's Main Modifications  
Further to Minute No. 181, 14th February 2014, the Director of City 
Development submitted a report which set out the key implications for the 
Council arising from the schedule of Main Modifications, and which also 
sought formal approval to publish the modifications for the purposes of 
consultation. 
 

Page 26



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

In response to Members’ enquiries, the Board received an update in respect 
of the work which continued to be undertaken to develop the Council’s 
evidence base in respect of a 5 year land supply for Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the ‘Main Modifications’ to the Core Strategy be approved, in 

order for these to be advertised, for a 6 week period of consultation. 
 
(b) That the revisions to the Core Strategy policies for Affordable Housing 

(H5) and Gypsy’s and Travellers (H7) be agreed and published for the 
purposes of consultation, prior to the May 2014 Hearing sessions.  

 
(c) That approval be given to the publication of a simplified monitoring 

framework for the purposes of consultation, subject to agreement with 
the Executive Member for Neighbourhoods, Planning and Support 
Services. 

 
(d) That it be noted that the Head of Forward Planning and Implementation 

will be responsible for the implementation of such matters, in line with 
the timescales as set out within the submitted report. 

 
(The matters referred to within this minute were designated as being exempt 
from Call In. A decision may be declared as being exempt from Call In if it is 
considered that any delay would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public 
interest. In this case, the inspector has identified a need for Main 
Modifications to the draft Core Strategy in order to resolve problems that 
would otherwise make the plan unsound. The Council must therefore agree 
the Main Modifications and carry out a further public consultation exercise on 
these if the process is to move forward. Therefore, this report is exempt from 
Call In given the need to consult on the modifications/changes for 6 weeks 
and in time for any representations to be considered and evidence prepared 
prior to the resumed Core Strategy hearing in May 2014) 
 

211 Leeds Core Strategy: Further pre-hearing changes to Policy H7: 
Accommodation for Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople  
The Director of Development submitted a report which sought approval of 
proposed revisions to the Core Strategy Policy H7 in respect of 
Accommodation for Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople, for the 
purposes of public consultation and also subsequent submission to the Core 
Strategy Inspector for discussion at the further hearing session in May 2014. 
 
An updated version of Appendix 1 to the submitted report had been circulated 
to Board Members for their consideration. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That subject to the incorporation of those revisions as detailed within 

the updated Appendix 1 which had been submitted to Board Members 
for their consideration, the revised Core Strategy Policy H7 
Accommodation for Gypsies,Travellers and Travelling Showpeople be 
approved for the purposes of: i) public consultation; and ii) subsequent 

Page 27



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

submission to the Core Strategy Inspector for discussion at the further 
hearing session in May 2014. 

 
(b) That it be noted that the Head of Forward Planning and Implementation 

will be responsible for implementation of such matters in line with the 
timescales as set out within paragraphs 5.1 and 5.2 of the submitted 
report. 

 
(The matters referred to within this minute were designated as being exempt 
from Call In. A decision may be declared as being exempt from Call In if it is 
considered that any delay would seriously prejudice the Council’s or the public 
interest. In this case it is deemed appropriate that this matter be exempted 
from Call In as there is a requirement to maintain progress on the Core 
Strategy, given the need to conduct a 6 week consultation period prior to the 
further hearing session scheduled for May 2014) 
 

212 Expansion at Cottingley Springs Site  
Further to Minute No. 69, 5th September 2012, the Director of Environment 
and Housing submitted a report which sought approval to inject £700,000 of 
available affordable housing S106 funding into the capital programme for the 
purpose of building 12 additional pitches of accommodation at Cottingley 
Springs. In addition, the report also sought authority to spend £1,790,000 in 
order to develop 12 new pitches for the expansion of the Cottingley Springs 
Site, subject to the outcome of the Local Inquiry to be held by the Secretary of 
State into this planning application. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That £700,000 of available affordable housing S106 funding be injected 

into the Capital Programme. 
 
(b) That authority be given to spend £1,790,000 in order to develop twelve 

new pitches for the expansion of the Cottingley Springs Site, subject to 
the outcome of the Local Inquiry to be held by the Secretary of State 
into the planning application. 

 
(c) That it be noted that the Director of Environment and Housing will be 

responsible for the progression of this development and that it also be 
noted that a further report will be submitted to Executive Board 
following the outcome of the Local Inquiry. 

 
213 Implementation of the Review of Housing Management Services and 

Next Steps  
Further to Minute No. 47, 17th July 2013, the Director of Environment and 
Housing submitted a report providing an update on the progress made 
regarding the delivery of Housing Management Review outcomes. In addition, 
the report also sought approval to the Housing Advisory Board’s proposal that 
the Council moves away from the Government’s decent homes standard and 
towards the development of a Leeds Housing Standard which gives thermal 
efficiency more prominence. 
 

Page 28



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

By way of introduction to the report, the Executive Member for 
Neighbourhoods, Planning and Support Services highlighted the substantial 
savings which had been made to date following the implementation of the 
review. However, emphasis was placed upon the Council’s priorities which 
centred around tenants receiving a consistently high quality service, with 
particular reference being made to housing repair service provision.   
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the considerable progress which is being made to deliver the 

outcomes of the Housing Management Review be noted, together with 
the savings that have already been accrued or are forecasted to accrue 
as the implementation programme progresses. 

 
(b) That it be recognised that the Government’s decent homes standard is 

no longer the sole investment driver, and that the Director of 
Neighbourhoods and Housing be requested to undertake work in order 
to develop a new housing standard for Leeds which takes account of 
improvement priorities for tenants, particularly around thermal 
efficiency. 

 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

214 Response to the Full Council Deputation by the Leeds Children's Mayor, 
Charlotte Williams: "Leeds Life Cycle"  
The Director of Children’s Services and the Director of City Development 
submitted a joint report which responded to the deputation presented to the 
full Council meeting of 15 January 2014, entitled ‘Life Cycle of Leeds’. The 
deputation was presented by Charlotte Williams, the winner of the Leeds 
Children’s Mayor competition. 
 
Members welcomed the deputation and the number of priorities which had 
been raised within it. The Board highlighted the importance for children and 
young people to be involved in consultation processes associated with the 
development of cycling infrastructure. In addition, Members emphasised the 
benefits of the ‘City Connect’ scheme, but also highlighted the importance of 
20mph zones within residential areas which could be used as a catalyst to 
further encourage young people to cycle in their neighbourhood. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That a letter be written to Charlotte on behalf of Executive Board, 

thanking her for highlighting her vision for improving cycling 
opportunities for children and young people in Leeds, whilst also 
offering her the Board’s congratulations on being elected as Children’s 
Lord Mayor. 

 
(b) That approval be given for Leeds City Council to work with key partners 

in order to ensure that children and young people are explicitly given 
the opportunity to contribute towards any consultation and 
development of significant new cycle paths and facilities in the city, 

Page 29



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

including the ‘City Connect’ project and on-going developments as part 
of the West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan (WYLTP) implementation. 

 
(c) That Charlotte be invited to meet with key members and officers 

involved in managing the Tour de France event as well as those who 
are responsible for and ensuring that there is a sustainable legacy post 
July 2014. 
 

(d) That Charlotte’s wishes as outlined within her deputation, and as 
detailed below, be noted:- 
(i) promoting cycling for children and young people; 
(ii) ensuring children and young people can make safe journeys around 
the city; 
(iii) considering developing further cycling paths to places like schools 
and leisure centres and into the city centre; 
(iv) providing more safe ‘lock up’ places for bikes in schools, parks and 
in the centre of Leeds; 
(v) supporting potential opportunities for raising funds through 
sponsorship; and 
(vi) ensuring Charlotte’s wishes are considered at all stages throughout 
the planning process of delivering a successful Tour de France 2014 
and build them into the legacy as and when appropriate. 

 
215 Children Looked After - update report focusing on proposals to further 

reduce the number of looked after children; particularly those under 5 
years of age  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report presenting an analysis 
of outputs from the ‘Turning the Curve’ Outcomes Based Accountability (OBA) 
workshop jointly held by the Children’s Trust Board and Health and Wellbeing 
Board in October 2013 and detailed proposals for the further development of 
co-ordinated, multi-agency responses aimed at to reducing the number of 
babies and infants becoming looked after. 
 
Members noted the key parental factors detailed within the submitted report, 
consistent with both national and international research, which had been 
identified as common in those cases resulting in children being taken into 
care. 
 
The Board highlighted the vital importance of early intervention wherever 
possible, and as such, emphasised the need to ensure that effective inter-
directorate and inter-agency work in such matters was maximised.  
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board received an update regarding 
the drug and alcohol treatment and recovery service provision, and the 
flexibility which was available around such provision to ensure that 
effectiveness of the service was maximised.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the issues raised within the submitted report be noted and that the 

importance of such issues be highlighted. 

Page 30



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

 
(b) That the direction of travel, as outlined within the submitted report be 

supported. 
 
(c) That the arrangements for monitoring progress over the next year, as 

detailed within the submitted report, be agreed. 
 
(d) That it be noted that the officer responsible for progressing this matter 

is the Deputy Director, Safeguarding, Specialist and Targeted. 
 

216 Part A - Outcome of Statutory Notice on Proposals for the Expansion of 
Calverley C of E Primary School; Part B - Outcome on a Proposal for the 
Expansion of Broadgate Primary School, Horsforth and Part C - 
Outcome of Statutory Notice on Proposals for the Expansion of 
Broomfield South SILC and West Oaks SEN Specialist School and 
College  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report on proposals brought 
forward to meet the Local Authority’s duty to ensure sufficiency of school 
places. The report was divided into three parts and it sought a final decision 
on each of the following proposals:- 
 
Part A - Described the outcome of a statutory notice in relation to the 
expansion of Calverley Church of England Primary School from September 
2015, and which sought a decision on this proposal. 
 
Part B - Summarised the outcomes arising from the consultation undertaken 
regarding a proposal to expand Broadgate Primary School, Horsforth, and 
which sought permission to publish a statutory notice in respect of such 
matters. 
 
Part C - Described the outcome of statutory notices in relation to the 
expansion of special educational needs provision within Leeds for September 
2015 and which sought a final decision on such proposals. 
 
With regard to proposals relating to Calverley Church of England Primary 
School, a Member highlighted the positive impact that such proposals would 
have, once all issues relating to access had been resolved. 
 
Responding to a Member’s comments regarding the increasing levels of 
demand for school places, the Board received an update on the ongoing 
cross-directorate work being undertaken to address such matters throughout 
the city.     
 
RESOLVED –  
Part A:  
(a) That the expansion of Calverley Church of England Primary School 

from a capacity of 315 to 420 pupils, with an increase in the admission 
number from 45 to 60 with effect from September 2015, be approved. 

 
 

Page 31



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

Part B:  
(a) That the publication of a statutory notice to expand Broadgate Primary 

School from a capacity of 210 pupils to 420 pupils, with an increase in 
the admission number from 30 to 60 with effect from September 2015, 
be approved. 

 
Part C:  
(a) That the expansion of Broomfield South SILC from a capacity of 200 to 

250 pupils with effect from September 2015 using a site adjacent to the 
school, Broom Court (Broom Place, Leeds, LS10 3JP) with effect from 
September 2015, be approved. 
 

(b) That the expansion of West Oaks SEN Specialist School and College 
from a capacity of 200 to 350 pupils by the creation of an additional site 
for 150 children and young people aged 2 to 16 on the former 
Blenheim Centre (Crowther Place, Leeds, LS6 2ST) with effect from 
September 2015, be approved. 

 
Parts A-C:  
(a) That it be noted that the Head of Service, Strategic Development 

and Investment is responsible for implementing such decisions by 
September 2015. 

 
(Earlier in the meeting, Councillor A Carter had brought the Board’s attention 
to his position on the Calverley Church of England Primary School Board of 
Governors. As he had previously voted in his capacity as school governor on 
matters relating to those detailed within the submitted report regarding the 
Primary School, Councillor Carter did not participate in any vote taken at the 
Executive Board meeting in relation to the school) 
 
ENVIRONMENT 
 

217 Design and Cost Report: Kirkstall Road Transfer Loading Station (TLS) 
and Household Waste Sorting Site (HWSS)  
The Director of Environment and Housing submitted a report providing an 
update on the progress made regarding the design development and cost 
estimates for the refurbishment of Kirkstall Road Transfer Loading Station 
(TLS) and Household Waste Sorting Site (HWSS). In addition, the report 
detailed the intention of Environment and Housing to value engineer the 
scheme down from a RIBA stage D total of £4,300,000, prior to the issue of 
tenders. Finally, the report sought authority to spend up to £4,300,000 from 
existing budget provision (capital scheme no 16169) on the refurbishment. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the RIBA stage D designs and cost estimates for the 

redevelopment of Kirkstall TLS and HWSS be approved. 
 
(b) That expenditure up to a limit of £4,300,000 from existing budget 

provision (capital scheme 16169) on the redevelopment of Kirkstall 
TLS and HWSS, be authorised. 

Page 32



Final Minutes - Approved at the meeting  
held on Wednesday, 2nd April, 2014 

 

 
(c) That the further development of designs and the procurement of a 

contractor to carry out construction work at Kirkstall TLS and HWSS be 
approved. 

 
(d) That the following be noted:- 

(i) The actions required to implement the resolutions (above);  
(ii) The proposed timescales to undertake the proposed works, as 

detailed within paragraph 3.2.1 of the submitted report; and  
(iii) That the Chief Officer Waste Management will be responsible 

for the implementation of such matters. 
 
LEISURE AND SKILLS 
 

218 Leeds International Piano Competition  
The Director of City Development submitted a report responding to the issues 
raised by the deputation presented to the meeting of full Council on 15th 
January 2014 in respect of Leeds International Piano Competition, the 
spokesperson for which was Dame Fanny Waterman. 
 
Members highlighted the significant contribution that the Leeds International 
Piano Competition made towards the city’s cultural offer. In addition, 
emphasis was placed upon the competition’s importance when considering 
the international recognition which it brought to Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that free use of the Civic Hall has been 
granted to the Piano Competition in 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  FRIDAY, 7TH MARCH 2014 
 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN  
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS: FRIDAY, 14TH MARCH 2014 AT 5.00 P.M. 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00noon on 
Monday, 17th March 2014)  
 
 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 2ND APRIL, 2014 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor K Wakefield in the Chair 

 Councillors J Blake, A Carter, M Dobson,  
S Golton, P Gruen, R Lewis, L Mulherin, 
A Ogilvie and L Yeadon 

 
 

219 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
RESOLVED – That, in accordance with Regulation 4 of The Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on 
the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so 
designated as follows:- 
 
(a) Appendix C to the report entitled, ‘Design and Cost Report for the 

Leeds (River Aire) Flood Alleviation Scheme’, referred to at Minute No. 
225 is designated as exempt in accordance with paragraph 10.4(3) of 
Schedule 12A(3) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds 
that it contains information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 
It is therefore considered that the public interest in maintaining the 
content of Appendix C as exempt outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. Appendix C is exempt as disclosing the cost 
estimate may affect the Council’s ability to secure the best financial 
outcome through competition. 

 
(b) Appendices 1(a) and 1(b) to the report entitled ‘Generating Income 

through Advertising’, referred to at Minute No. 228 is designated as 
exempt in accordance with paragraph 10.4(3) of Schedule 12A(3) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that the information 
detailed within the appendices relates to the financial or business 
affairs of particular organisations and the Council. This information is 
not publicly available from the statutory registers of information kept in 
respect of certain companies and charities. It is considered that since 
this information relates to financial offers that the Council has received 
in response to a published invitation to bid for the opportunities in 
questions it is not in the public interest to disclose this information at 
this point in time. Also, it is considered that the release of such 
information would, or would be likely to prejudice the process under 
which the Council is seeking to award the two licences for billboard 
sites and city centre 6 sheet units. It is considered that whilst there may 
be a public interest in disclosure, this information will be publicly 
available upon award of the licences and consequently the public 

Page 35



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing this information at this point in time. 

 
220 Late Items  

There were no formal late items submitted, however, Board Members had 
been provided with colour versions of further visuals associated with agenda 
item 10, ‘Design and Cost Report for the Proposed Improvement and 
Refurbishment of Kirkgate Market’ (Minute No. 227 refers). 
 

221 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
There were no Disclosable Pecuniary Interests made during the meeting, 
however, comments in respect of interests were made at later points in the 
meeting (Minute Nos. 226 and 229 refer respectively). 
 

222 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 5th March 
2014 be approved as a correct record.  
 
LEADER OF COUNCIL'S PORTFOLIO 
 

223 Financial Health Monitoring 2013/2014: Month 11  
The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report presenting the Council’s 
projected financial position for 2013/2014 after eleven months of the financial 
year. The report stated that current forecasts were that the Council’s general 
fund budget would be underspent by £3.9million.  
 
As part of the introduction to the report, the Deputy Chief Executive corrected 
a figure quoted in paragraph 2 of the ‘Summary of Main Issues’ section. It was 
also noted that the intention was not to submit a further monitoring report in 
respect of the Council’s financial health until the June 2014 Board meeting, 
when the final outturn position would be presented for Members’ 
consideration.  
 
Members welcomed the actions being taken to ensure that the benefits from 
the Better Care Fund would be maximised.  
  
In conclusion, the Chair thanked all officers concerned for their continued 
efforts which had led to the current financial position, after 11 months of the 
financial year. 
 
RESOLVED – That the projected financial position of the authority after 
eleven months of the financial year be noted. 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND THE ECONOMY 
 

224 A6210/A657 Rodley Roundabout Improvement  
The Director of City Development submitted a report detailing the total 
scheme costs of £3,475,000 for the Rodley Roundabout improvements 
initiative. In addition, the report sought authority to incur such expenditure and 

Page 36



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

also sought approval to invite tenders and to implement the proposed highway 
improvement works to the roundabout. 
 
The Board welcomed the proposals to improve the A6120/A657 Rodley 
Roundabout, with specific reference being made to the benefit which would be 
gained from the provision of controlled pedestrian crossing facilities.  
 
In highlighting the work which was also scheduled to take place to improve 
A65/A6012 Horsforth roundabout and also the A647/B6154 Thornbury 
Barracks junction, Members noted that the cumulative impact of such works 
would be monitored, and that every effort would be made to ensure that any 
disruption was minimised.  
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the construction of the Council’s scheme to fully signalise Rodley 

Roundabout with associated highway works, at an estimated cost of 
£3,475,000, be approved. 
 

(b) That approval be given to inject £3,475,000 into the City Development 
capital programme. 
 

(c) That authority be given to incur expenditure of £3,475,000 (comprising 
of works costs £3,202,375 and staff fee costs £272,625) funded from a 
Department for Transport Tranche 4 Local Pinch Point Fund 
Government grant of £2,432,000, a Local Transport Plan grant of 
£306,239, and a Private Developer section 106 receipt of £736,761. 
 

(d) That it be noted that the officer responsible for implementing these 
proposals is the Acting Head of Transport Policy and that the works 
would be procured through appropriate tender procedures and 
delivered in line with the dates identified in section 4.7 of the submitted 
report. 
 

(e) That it be noted that it is proposed to deliver the proposals contained 
within the submitted report with the already approved proposals for 
Horsforth Roundabout as a single contract. 

 
225 Design and Cost Report for the Leeds (River Aire)  Flood Alleviation 

Scheme  
Further to Minute No. 74, 4th September 2013, the Director of City 
Development submitted a report providing an update on the progress of 
proposals to provide river flood defences for the city and provided the Board 
with an opportunity to agree a design freeze on the scheme. In addition, the 
report also sought approval to incur the necessary expenditure to implement 
the Leeds Flood Alleviation Scheme (LFAS) City Centre and Holbeck works.  
 
The Board welcomed the proposals detailed within the submitted report, with 
reference being made to the innovative approach which had been taken 
towards the establishment of a flood defence system, which included the 
proposed development of movable weirs at Crown Point and Knostrop. 

Page 37



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

Members also welcomed the advanced flood mitigation works which began on 
site in Woodlesford in January 2014. 
 
A Member highlighted the issue of home owners replacing gardens with 
impermeable surfaces, the potential impact that this may have in respect of 
local surface water levels and made enquiries into the actions being taken to 
monitor and address this issue. In response, officers undertook to incorporate 
this matter into the ongoing work which was being undertaken in respect of 
issues around surface water flooding, and it was noted that further information 
would be submitted to a future meeting of the Board.    
 
Responding to an enquiry, the Board was provided with an update on the 
progress which had been made, together with the ongoing work which 
continued to take place in respect of the cleansing and maintenance of 
gullies.  
 
The Board noted the timescales by which it was proposed the flood defence 
scheme for the city centre would be completed, and received assurances that 
there was nothing at this time to suggest that such timescales would not be 
met. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix C to the submitted report, designated as 
exempt from publication under the provisions of Access to Information 
Procedure Rule 10.4 (3), which was considered in private at the conclusion of 
the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the scheme as described within the submitted report be approved. 

 
(b) That the promotion of Leeds City Council unsupported borrowing of 

£4,540,000 from the Amber to the Green Capital Programme be 
approved. 
 

(c) That expenditure from the Capital Programme of £36,463,200 for the 
implementation of the Leeds Flood Alleviation Scheme works be 
authorised. This includes costs of £75,000 to be incurred to investigate 
any surface water flooding issues. 
 

(d) That approval be given for Leeds City Council to take responsibility for 
the maintenance and operation of all assets constructed as part of the 
Leeds (River Aire) Flood Alleviation Scheme, including the movable 
weirs, walls and terraces. 
 

(e) That authority be given to enter into a legal agreement with a third party 
in order to incorporate a hydropower turbine into the water course 
adjacent to the location of Knostrop Weir. 
 

(f) That the Director of City Development be authorised to negotiate and 
approve the detailed terms of the following:- 

Page 38



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

(i) the acquisition of land required to facilitate the construction of 
the moveable weirs at Knostrop and Crown Point; and 

(ii) the incorporation of a hydropower turbine adjacent to Knostrop 
Weir; 

(iii) the licence to access property owned by the Canals & Rivers 
Trust and carry out works to remove a length of Knostrop Cut; 

(iv) the acquisition of the remainder of the island at Knostrop Cut; 
(v) any lease or other agreement required to facilitate the relocation 

of the Trans Pennine Trail at Knostrop Cut. 
 

(g) That it be noted that the Chief Officer Highways and Transportation will 
be responsible for the implementation of the resolutions, as detailed 
above. 

 
226 Leeds City Centre Business Improvement District  

Further to Minute No. 75, 4th September 2013, the Director of City 
Development submitted a report setting out the next steps for consideration 
by the Council following the completion of a detailed feasibility study regarding 
the potential establishment of a Leeds City Centre Business Improvement 
District (BID). In addition, the report presented the recommendations from the 
study and sought in principle support for a Leeds City Centre BID, subject to a 
full proposal being submitted by the private sector steering group. 
 
Members welcomed the principle of a Leeds City Centre BID, and highlighted 
the vital importance of a vibrant and attractive city centre with a balanced offer 
of retail and leisure facilities.  
 
Having placed emphasis upon the need to ensure that any BID threshold 
established did not discriminate against smaller businesses, the Board noted 
that the BID proposals recommended that occupiers of small premises with a 
rateable value below a threshold yet to be determined were exempted from a 
potential BID levy.     
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry regarding those companies who may have 
a portfolio of several premises within a BID boundary, and whether the 
premises of such organisations could be aggregated for the purposes of any 
BID levy established, officers undertook to look further into this matter and 
report back to the Board accordingly. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the principle of a Leeds City Centre BID, with the aim of improving 

and promoting Leeds City Centre as a leading European business 
location, be supported. 
 

(b) That agreement be given to consider the Council’s support for the final 
bid boundary following the next phase of consultation. 
 

(c) That the principle of occupiers of small business units (below a certain 
rateable value yet to be determined) being exempted from paying 
additional rates be supported. 

Page 39



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

 
(d) That in principle support be given for the Council to be a levy payer, 

subject to it being satisfied with the proposed BID boundary, business 
plan and levy rate. 
 

(e) That agreement be given to the continued partnership with the private 
sector in the development of a Leeds City Centre BID by approving 
joint funding of the next phase of work to consult further, develop a 
proposed BID business plan, run a campaign to encourage occupiers 
to vote for a BID, and hold a bid ballot in November 2014. 
 

(f) That approval be given to provide up to £150,000 of funding, 
recoverable from the BID in the event there is a ‘YES’ vote, to the 
Chamber of Commerce for the next phase of work up to the BID ballot, 
which is on the understanding that there will also be significant private 
sector contribution (if a BID is established, this funding will be repaid to 
the Council by the BID in its first year). 
 

(g) That the Chief Economic Development Officer be instructed to submit a 
further report to a future meeting of Executive Board (likely to be 
September 2014) in order to seek approval on the proposed BID 
business plan, and to progress to a BID ballot. 
 

(h) That the following be noted:- 
i. The stages required to implement the decision, as outlined within 

section 4 of the submitted report; 
ii. The proposed timescales for implementation, as outlined within 

section 4 of the submitted report; and  
iii. That the Chief Economic Development Officer will be responsible 

for the implementation of the resolutions, as detailed above. 
 
(During the consideration of this item, Councillor Wakefield and the Chief 
Executive brought the Board’s attention to their respective memberships of 
the Leeds, York and North Yorkshire Chamber of Commerce) 
 

227 Design and Cost report for the Proposed Improvement and 
Refurbishment of Kirkgate Market  
Further to Minute No. 145, 18th December 2013, the Director of City 
Development submitted a report which sought approval of the RIBA Stage D 
design and cost proposals for the improvement and refurbishment of Kirkgate 
Market. The report also sought approval for the authority to spend 
£10,800,000 as the balance of the funding required to undertake the works. In 
addition, the report sought approval to the injection and authority to spend of 
£330,000 for the enhanced stall fit out of a number of identified units and the 
provision of financial assistance to relocating tenants. Furthermore, 
agreement was sought to provide the Director of City Development with the 
necessary authority, in consultation with the Executive Member for 
Development and the Economy, to take decisions that facilitate the 
improvement and refurbishment of Kirkgate Market. Finally, the report 

Page 40



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

provided an update on the progress in appointing a developer to undertake 
the redevelopment of the George Street frontage. 
 
The Board welcomed the proposals detailed within the submitted report and 
highlighted the key part that the market would continue to play in the city 
centre’s varied retail offer.  
 
In response to a specific enquiry, officers emphasised that dialogue with 
traders would continue throughout the proposed refurbishment process, in 
order to provide them with information and reassurance wherever possible. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the RIBA Stage D design and cost proposals for the proposed 

improvement and refurbishment of Kirkgate Market be approved. 
 

(b) That authority be given to the expenditure of £190,800 in respect of 
Kirkgate refurbishment feasibility costs. 
 

(c) That a further injection of £330,000 into the capital programme be 
approved for the purposes of stall refurbishment and financial 
assistance to relocating tenants. 
 

(d) That authority be given to spend £10,800,000 on the proposed 
improvement and refurbishment of Kirkgate Market and also £330,000 
on stall refurbishment and financial assistance to relocating tenants. 
 

(e) That the Director of City Development, in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Development and the Economy, be authorised 
to take decisions that facilitate the works to improve and refurbish 
Kirkgate Market. 
 

(f) That the following be noted:- 

• The actions required to implement the resolutions, as detailed 
above; 

• The proposed timescales to progress the project as detailed in 
paragraph 3.2.1 of the submitted report; 

• That the Chief Economic Development Officer and the Market 
Manager will be responsible for the implementation of the 
resolutions. 

 
228 Generating Income through Advertising  

The Director of City Development submitted a report which invited the Board 
to award the preferred organisation with a licence, for a period of 10 years, for 
the purposes of operating the Council’s billboard site portfolio, along with 
development of new sites as proposed, subject to the required planning 
consents being granted. In addition, the report also sought approval to 
progress the preferred organisation to a further stage of development in 
respect of installing, operating and maintaining a portfolio of 6 sheet 
advertising units within the city centre for a period of 15 years, subject to 
necessary planning consents being secured.  

Page 41



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

 
Following consideration of Appendices 1(a) and 1(b) to the submitted report, 
designated as exempt from publication under the provisions of Access to 
Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3), which was considered in private at the 
conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED –  

(a) That the contents of the submitted report, together with the work 
undertaken to realise advertising opportunities that could potentially 
deliver a significant increase in income to the Council, be noted. 
 

(b) That, as per exempt Appendix 1(a), approval be given to the preferred 
organisation to manage under licence the Council’s billboard site 
portfolio. 

 
(c) That, as per exempt Appendix 1(b), approval be given to the 

progression of the named organisation to a second stage of 
proposal refinement/development in respect of a city centre 6 sheet 
initiative. 

 
(d) That the Director of City Development be delegated the necessary 

authority to agree the final award of the city centre 6 sheet initiative. 
 

(e) That the following be noted:- 

• the stages required to implement the resolutions (above), as 

outlined within paragraphs 3.3.5 and 3.4.7 of the submitted 

report; 

• the proposed timescales for implementation of the resolutions, 

as outlined within paragraphs 3.3.5 and 3.4.7 of the submitted 

report; and 

• that the Head of Property Services will be responsible for the 
implementation of such matters. 

 
229 Affordable Housing Growth and Investment through the Affordable 

Homes Programme  
Further to Minute No. 179, 14th February 2014, the Director of City 
Development and the Director of Environment and Housing submitted a joint 
report providing an update on the delivery of affordable housing, particularly in 
the context of the Homes and Communities Agency’s Affordable Homes 
Programme (AHP). In addition, the report presented an overview of how the 
Council had responded to the 2015-2018 Affordable Homes Programme from 
the Homes and Communities (HCA) and how the Council aimed to maximise 
development of affordable housing units throughout the programme. 
Furthermore, the report sought approval to dispose of the sites listed in 
Appendices 1 and 2 of the submitted report to Registered Providers (RPs) for 
affordable housing and to confirm the identification of the sites listed at 
Appendix 3 for the development of affordable housing, either wholly or in-part. 

Page 42



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

 
Members welcomed the proposals detailed within the submitted report and 
the proactive approach being taken towards making sites available for 
investment and development. In addition, the following key points were raised 
during the consideration of this item:  

• The importance of a mixed economy of housing provision in 
communities across the city; 

• Emphasis was placed upon the need for the proposed provision of 
affordable housing to be delivered within a 5 year period as part of the 
Council’s 5 year land supply;  

• The quality standards required for any new housing provision in Leeds. 
 
In conclusion, and responding to enquiries made during the discussion, it was 
agreed that reports be submitted to future Board meetings with regard to the 
quality standard required for new housing provision in Leeds and also in 
respect of the potential use of vacant sites within the EASEL area.   
 
RESOLVED –  

(a) That the contents of the submitted report be noted. 
 

(b) That the sites as  at detailed at Appendix 1 and 2 to the submitted 
report be declared as surplus to the Council’s requirements. 

 
(c) That the Director of City Development be delegated the necessary 

authority to dispose of those sites as listed at Appendix 1 to the 
submitted report on a less that best basis, subject to justification for 
such a transfer being evidenced by an RP via a Financial Viability 
Assessment of the proposed scheme being carried out by a third 
party. 

 
(d) That the Director of City Development be delegated the necessary  

authority to dispose of those sites as listed at Appendix 2 to the 
submitted report at a less than best consideration calculated at 
£1,000 per plot. 

 
(e) That the identification of those sites listed at Appendix 3 to the 

submitted report for medium term development for either council 
housing, disposal to RPs or in conjunction with a developer, be 
approved. 

 
(f) That the sites, as identified in Appendices 2 and 3 to the submitted 

report which are additional to those included within the Housing 
Investment Land Strategy, be approved. 

 
(g) That the necessary authority be delegated to the Director of City 

Development in order to identify further sites to support the delivery 
of affordable housing. 

 

Page 43



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

(h) That in principle approval be given to the proposal for the Council to 
acquire privately owned land for the development of affordable 
housing. 

 
(i) That the following be noted:- 

• The stages required to implement the resolutions above, as outlined 
within paragraphs 3.31 and 3.32 of the submitted report. 

• The proposed timescales for implementation of such matters, as 
outlined within paragraph 3.33 of the submitted report. 

• That the Chief Officer Asset Management and Regeneration will be 
responsible for the implementation of such resolutions. 

 
(j) That reports be submitted to future Board meetings with regard to the 

quality standard required for new housing provision in Leeds and 
also in respect of the potential use of vacant sites within the EASEL 
area. 

 
(During the consideration of this item, Councillor A Carter brought the 
Board’s attention to his position as a Director of a Housing Association) 
 

230 Kippax Village Centre Improvements: 25-37 High Street, Kippax  
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing context to, and 
proposing an approach towards the delivery of improvements to land and 
buildings at 25-37 High Street, Kippax, following discussions with Ward 
Members, Kippax Parish Council and Kippax Traders Association. In addition, 
the report also sought approval to progress the preparation of a development 
brief for the site and to negotiate with the owner. Furthermore. it also raised 
the possibility of using compulsory purchase powers to underpin the delivery 
of a suitable scheme. 
 
The Board welcomed the proposals detailed within the submitted report and 
highlighted the vital role played by the outlying communities throughout the 
city. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the principle of further development within Kippax village centre 

be approved. 
 

(b) That the preparation of a Development Brief for 25-37 High Street, 
Kippax, by the Director of City Development which will be presented to 
Executive Board for approval in the autumn and will support the 
procurement of a developer and outline the basis for redevelopment, 
be approved. 

 
(c) That the continuation of negotiations by the Director of City 

Development with the owner, be approved. 
 

(d) That the potential for the use of Compulsory Purchase powers in 
relation to 25-37 High Street, Kippax, be noted. 

 

Page 44



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

231 Determination of School Admissions Arrangements 2015  
The Director of Children’s submitted a report which sought approval of the 
Local Authority’s Admissions Policy and admissions arrangements for entry in 
September 2015. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Admissions Policy for community and voluntary controlled 

schools for September 2015, be approved, and that it be noted that the 
officer responsible for the publication of the determined arrangements 
is the Capacity Planning and Sufficiency Lead, with the date for 
implementation (ie publication) being 1 May 2014. 

 
(b) That the Co-ordinated Scheme for admissions arrangements for entry 

in September 2015, be approved, and that it be noted that the officer 
responsible for this work is the Capacity Planning and Sufficiency 
Lead, with the date for implementation (ie determination of any revised 
policy) being 15 April 2014. 

 
LEISURE AND SKILLS 
 

232 Tour de France - Progress Report  
Further to Minute No. 135, 18th December 2013, the Director of City 
Development submitted a report providing an update on the progress which 
had been made in respect of the planning for the Tour de France Grand 
Depart 2014 since the submission of the previous update report. 
 
By way of an introduction to the report, the Executive Member for Leisure and 
Skills highlighted the communications exercises which had taken place with 
affected residents and businesses and also provided an update on the events 
which were scheduled to take place as part of Yorkshire’s ‘100 Day Cultural 
Festival’ programme.  
 
Responding to a Member’s enquiry, the Board received an update regarding 
the work being undertaken with a range of partners on the provision of 
infrastructure for the event, such as cyclists’ parking, pedestrian and disabled 
access and also public transport. 
 
Having briefly discussed the legacy from the event and the work being 
undertaken around this issue, it was noted that a report regarding legacy was 
scheduled to be submitted to the Board in May 2014. 
 
In conclusion, emphasis was placed upon the importance of the all-party 
support for the event which continued to be provided. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress made in preparation for the Tour de France 
Grand Depart 2014, together with the proposals detailed within the submitted 
report, be noted. 
 

Page 45



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th May, 2014 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  FRIDAY, 4TH APRIL 2014 
 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN  
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS: FRIDAY, 11TH APRIL 2014 AT 5.00 P.M. 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00noon on 
Monday, 14th April 2014) 
 
 
 

Page 46


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 10 March 2014
	7 Inquiry into Tackling Domestic Violence and Abuse - Draft Scrutiny Report
	8 Work Schedule
	Printed minutes 05th-Mar-2014 13.00 Executive Board
	Printed minutes 02nd-Apr-2014 13.00 Executive Board


